
Y Pwyllgor Materion Cyfansoddiadol a 
Deddfwriaethol 
 

Lleoliad: 
Ystafell Bwyllgora 2 - y Senedd 

 

 

 

Dyddiad: 
Dydd Llun, 22 Ebrill 2013  

 

Amser: 
13:30 

 

I gael rhagor o wybodaeth, cysylltwch a:  

Gareth Williams 
Clerc y Pwyllgor 
029 2089 8008/8019 
PwyllgorMCD@cymru.gov.uk  

  

 

Agenda 
 

 

1. Cyflwyniad, ymddiheuriadau, dirprwyon a datganiadau o fuddiant   

1. Offerynnau nad ydynt yn cynnwys unrhyw faterion i’w codi o dan 
Reol Sefydlog 21.2 neu 21.3 
2.    

Offerynnau'r Weithdrefn Penderfyniad Negyddol 

 
CLA241 - Rheoliadau Cymorth Gwladol (Symiau at Anghenion Personol) a 
Chymorth Gwladol (Asesu Adnoddau) (Diwygio) (Cymru) 2013   

Y weithdrefn negyddol. Fe’u gwnaed are: 15 Mawrth 2013. Fe’u gosodwyd ar: 
18 Mawrth 2013. Yn dod i rym ar: 8 Ebrill 2013. 

 
 
 

CLA242 - Rheoliadau Cymorth Gwladol a Ffioedd Gofal Cymdeithasol (Cymru) 
(Diwygiadau Amrywiol) 2013   

Y weithdrefn negyddol. Fe’u gwnaed ar: 15 Mawrth 2013. Fe’u gosodwyd ar: 
18 Mawrth 2013. Yn dod i rym ar: 8 Ebrill 2013. 

 
 
 

CLA243 - Rheoliadau Cymorth Gwladol (Asesu Adnoddau) (Diwygiadau 
Amrywiol) 2013   

Pecyn dogfennau cyhoeddus



Y weithdrefn negyddol. Fe’u gwnaed ar: 15 Mawrth 2013. Fe’u gosodwyd ar: 
18 Mawrth 2013. Yn dod i rym ar: 8 Ebrill 2013. 

 
 
 

CLA244 - Rheoliadau'r Dreth Gyngor (Darpariaethau Ychwanegol ar gyfer 
Diystyriadau Disgownt) (Diwygio) (Cymru) 2013   

Y weithdrefn negyddol. Fe’u gwnaed ar: 18 Mawrth 2013. Fe’u gosodwyd ar: 
18 Mawrth 2013. Yn dod i rym ar: 8 Ebrill 2013. 

 
 
 

CLA246 - Rheoliadau Plant (Llety Diogel) (Diwygio) (Cymru) 2013   
Y weithdrefn negyddol. Fe’u gwnaed ar: 19 Mawrth 2013. Fe’u gosodwyd ar: 
20 Mawrth 2013. Yn dod i rym ar: 18 Ebrill 2013. 

 
 
 

CLA247 - Gorchymyn Corfforaeth Addysg Uwch Prifysgol Cymru, Casnewydd 
(Diddymu) 2013   

Y weithdrefn negyddol: Fe’i gwnaed ar: 19 Mawrth 2013. Fe’i gosodwyd ar: 20 
Mawrth 2013. Yn dod i rym ar: 11 Ebrill 2013. 

 
 
 

CLA248 - Rheoliadau'r Gwasanaeth Iechyd Gwladol (Contractau Gwasanaethau 
Meddygol Cyffredinol) (Rhagnodi Cyffuriau Etc) (Cymru) (Diwygio) 2013   

Y weithdrefn negyddol. Fe’u gwnaed ar: 21 Mawrth 2013. Fe’u gosodwyd ar: 
22 Mawrth 2013. Yn dod i rym ar: 12 Ebrill 2013. 

 
 
 

CLA249 - Rheoliadau'r Gwasanaeth Iechyd Gwladol (Diwygiadau Canlyniadol 
Diwygio Lles) (Cymru) 2013   

Y weithdrefn negyddol. Fe’u gwnaed ar: 21 Mawrth 2013. Fe’u gosodwyd ar: 
22 Mawrth 2013. Yn dod i rym ar: 12 Ebrill 2013. 

 
 
 

CLA250 - Gorchymyn Cynllun Pensiwn y Diffoddwyr Tân (Cymru) (Cyfraniadau) 
(Diwygio) 2013   

Y weithdrefn negyddol. Fe’i gwnaed ar: 26 Mawrth 2013. Fe’i gosodwyd ar: 27 
Mawrth 2013. Yn dod i rym ar: 1 Ebrill 2013. 

 
 
 

CLA251 - Gorchymyn Cynllun Pensiwn y Dynion Tân (Cymru) (Cyfraniadau) 
(Diwygio) 2013   

Y weithdrefn negyddol. Fe’i gwnaed ar: 26 Mawrth 2013. Fe’i gosodwyd ar: 27 
Mawrth 2013. Yn dod i rym ar: 1 Ebrill 2013. 

 



 
 

CLA252 - Rheoliadau Rheoliadau Adeiladau etc (Diwygio) (Cymru) 2013   
Y weithdrefn negyddol. Fe’u gwnaed ar: 26 Mawrth 2013. Fe’u gosodwyd ar: 
28 Mawrth 2013. Yn dod i rym yn unol â rheoliad 1(4). 

 
 

Offerynnau'r Weithdrefn Penderfyniad Cadarnhaol 

 

3. Offerynnau sy’n cynnwys materion i gyflwyno adroddiad arnynt 
i'r Cynulliad o dan Reol Sefydlog 21.2 neu 21.3   

Offerynnau’r Weithdrefn Penderfyniad Negyddol 

 
CLA245 - Gorchymyn y Dreth Gyngor (Diystyriadau Disgownt) (Diwygio) 
(Cymru) 2013  (Tudalennau 1 - 8) 

Y weithdrefn negyddol. Fe’i gwnaed ar: 18 Mawrth 2013. Fe’i gosodwyd ar: 18 
Mawrth 2013. Yn dod i rym yn unol â rheoliad 1. 

 
CLA(4)-11-13(p1) – Adroddiad 
CLA(4)-11-13(p2) – Gorchymyn 
CLA(4)-11-13(p3) – Memorandwm Esboniadol 
 
 

Y Weithdrefn Penderfyniad Negyddol Cyfansawdd 

 
CLA240 - Rheoliadau Addysg (Benthyciadau Myfyrwyr) (Ad-daliad) (Diwygio) 
2013 (Saesneg yn unig)  (Tudalennau 9 - 23) 

Y weithdrefn penderfyniad negyddol cyfansawdd. Fe’u gwnaed ar: 13 Mawrth 
2013. Fe’u gosodwyd ar: 14 Mawrth 2013. Yn dod i rym ar: 6 Ebrill 2013. 

 
CLA(4)0-11-13(p4) – Adroddiad 
CLA(4)0-11-13(p5) - Rheoliadau 
CLA(4)0-11-13(p6) – Memorandwm Esboniadol 
 
 

4. Cynnig o dan Reol Sefydlog 17.42 i benderfynu gwahardd y 
cyhoedd o'r cyfarfod ar gyfer y canlynol:    

Caiff pwyllgor benderfynu gwahardd y cyhoedd o gyfarfod neu unrhyw 
ran o gyfarfod: 
(vi) lle mae’r pwyllgor yn cyd-drafod cynnwys, casgliadau neu 
argymhellion adroddiad y mae’n bwriadu ei gyhoeddi; neu’n ymbaratoi i 
gael tystiolaeth gan unrhyw berson; 

  

 
Trafod Adroddiad Terfynol yr Ymchwiliad Byr i Reoliadau Cynlluniau 



Gostyngiadau’r Dreth Gyngor  (Tudalennau 24 - 75) 
CLA(4)-11-13(p7) – Adroddiad Terfynol 
 

5. Tystiolaeth mewn cysylltiad â'r Adolygiad o Bwerau Gweinidogion 
Cymru yn Neddfau’r DU    
(Amser Dangosol 2pm) 
 
Y Gwir Anrhydeddus Carwyn Jones AC, Prif Weinidog Cymru; 
Sarah Canning, Tîm Materion Cyfansoddiadol a Deddfwriaeth Seneddol 
 
 
 
http://www.senedd.cynulliadcymru.org/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=1533 
  

6. Tystiolaeth mewn cysylltiad â'r Bil Gwasanaethau Cymdeithsol 
(Cymru)    
(Amser Dangosol 2.50pm) 
 
Gwenda Thomas AC, y Dirprwy Weinidog Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol; 
Julie Rogers, Dirprwy Gyfarwyddwraig Is-adran Deddfwriaeth a Polisi Gwasanaethau 
Cymdeithasol; 
Steve Milsom, Dirprwy Gyfarwyddwr Polisi a Strategaethau; 
Mike Lubienski, Uwch Gyfreithiwr Tîm Gofal Cymdeithasol 
 
 
 
 
http://www.senedd.cynulliadcymru.org/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=5664 
  

7. Papur i'w nodi    
CLA(4)-11-13(p8) – Llythyr gan Mick Antoniw AC, yr Aelod sy’n Gyfrifol am y Bil 
Adennill Costau Meddygol ar gyfer Clefydau Asbestos (Cymru)  



DRAFT SI REPORT 

Constitutional and Legislative Affairs Committee 
 
CLA(4)-11-13 
 
CLA245 - The Council Tax (Discount Disregards) (Amendment) 
(Wales) Order 2013 
 
Procedure:    Negative 
 
The Council Tax (Discount Disregards) Order 1992 (“the 1992 Order”) 
prescribes conditions which must be fulfilled by severely mentally 
impaired persons and various persons of other descriptions in order 
for them to be disregarded for the purposes of council tax discounts 
which are prescribed for by section 11 of the Local Government 
Finance Act 1992.   
 
The 1992 Order prescribes that to be disregarded for the purposes of 
council tax discounts a severely mentally impaired person must be in 
receipt of a qualifying benefit. Article 2(a) and (b) amends the 
conditions of the 1992 Order so that the daily living component of 
personal independence payment is included within the definition of a 
qualifying benefit.  
 
Article 2(c) further amends the 1992 Order to include universal credit, 
which comprises of an amount paid to a person due to that person’s 
limited capability for work or limited capability for work and work 
related activity, within the definition of a qualifying benefit. 
Technical Scrutiny 
 
No points are identified for reporting under Standing Order 21.2 in 
respect of this instrument: 
 
Merits Scrutiny 
 
The following point is identified for reporting in respect of this 
instrument . 
 
The Order adds two benefits to the list of benefits that justifies 
disregarding persons for council tax purposes.  It might therefore, 
perhaps, be expected that this would add to the number of persons to 
be disregarded, and so would reduce the income of local authorities.  
No explanation is given in the Explanatory Memorandum and no 
Regulatory Impact Assessment has been prepared for this Order.  
Therefore there is no analysis available of the effect of this Order on 
local authorities. 
 
[Standing Order 21.3(ii) - that it is of political or legal importance or 
gives rise to issues of public policy likely to be of interest to the 
Assembly.] 

Eitem 3.1

Tudalen 1



DRAFT SI REPORT 

 
Legal Advisers 
Constitutional and Legislative Affairs Committee 
 
March 2013 
 

Tudalen 2



  

 

W E L S H  S T A T U T O R Y  

I N S T R U M E N T S  

2013 No. 638 (W. 71) 

COUNCIL TAX, WALES 

The Council Tax (Discount 

Disregards) (Amendment) (Wales) 

Order 2013 

EXPLANATORY NOTE 

(This note is not part of the Order) 

The Council Tax (Discount Disregards) Order 1992 

(“the 1992 Order”) prescribes conditions which must 

be fulfilled by severely mentally impaired persons and 

various persons of other descriptions in order for them 

to be disregarded for the purposes of council tax 

discounts which are prescribed for by section 11 of the 

Local Government Finance Act 1992 (“the 1992 Act”).   

The 1992 Order prescribes that to be disregarded for 

the purposes of council tax discounts a severely 

mentally impaired person must be in receipt of a 

qualifying benefit. Article 2(a) and (b) amends the 

conditions of the 1992 Order so that the daily living 

component of personal independence payment is 

included within the definition of a qualifying benefit.  

Article 2(c) further amends the 1992 Order to 

include universal credit, which comprises of an 

amount paid to a person due to that person’s limited 

capability for work or limited capability for work and 

work related activity, within the definition of a 

qualifying benefit. 

The Welsh Ministers’ Code of Practice on the 

carrying out of Regulatory Impact Assessments was 

considered in relation to this Order.  As a result it was 

not considered necessary to carry out a regulatory 

impact assessment as to the likely costs and benefits of 

complying with this Order. 

Tudalen 3



 

 2

W E L S H  S T A T U T O R Y  

I N S T R U M E N T S  

2013 No. 638 (W. 71) 

COUNCIL TAX, WALES 

The Council Tax (Discount 

Disregards) (Amendment) (Wales) 

Order 2013 

Made 18 March 2013  

Laid before the National Assembly for Wales

 18 March 2013  

Coming into force in accordance with 

regulation 1  

The Welsh Ministers make the following Order in 

exercise of the powers conferred upon the Secretary of 

State by paragraph 2 of Schedule 1 to the Local 

Government Finance Act 1992(1) and now vested in 

them(2). 

Title, commencement and application 

1.—(1) The title of this Order is the Council Tax 

(Discount Disregards) (Amendment) (Wales) Order 

2013. 

(2) Subject to paragraph (3), this Order comes into 
force on 8 April 2013. 

(3) Article 2(c) comes into force on 29 April 2013. 

(4) This Order applies in relation to Wales. 

                                                                               
(1) 1992 c.14. 
(2) Functions of the Secretary of State, so far as exercisable in 

relation to Wales, were transferred to the National Assembly 
for Wales by the National Assembly for Wales (Transfer of 
Functions) Order 1999 (S.I. 1999/672), article 2 and 
Schedule 1. Those functions were subsequently transferred 
to the Welsh Ministers by virtue of paragraph 30 of Schedule 
11 to the Government of Wales Act 2006 (c.32). 

Tudalen 4



 

 3

Amendment of the Council Tax (Discount 

Disregards) Order 1992 

2. Paragraph (2) of article 3 of the Council Tax 

(Discount Disregards) Order 1992(1) is amended as 

follows— 

(a) at the end of sub-paragraph (k)(2) for 

“.” substitute ”;”; 

(b) after sub-paragraph (k) insert— 

“(l) the standard or enhanced rate of 

the daily living component of 

personal independence payment 

under section 78(3) of the 

Welfare Reform Act 2012(3);”; 

(c) after sub-paragraph (l) insert— 

“(m) universal credit under Part 1 of 

the Welfare Reform Act 2012 

the calculation of which includes 

an amount under regulation 

27(1) of the Universal Credit 

Regulations 2013(4) in respect 

of the fact that the person in 

question has limited capability 

for work or limited capability 

for work and work-related 

activity or would include such 

an amount but for regulation 

27(4) or 29(4) of those 

Regulations.”. 

 

 

 

 

 

Lesley Griffiths  

 

Minister for Local Government and Government 

Business, one of the Welsh Ministers 

 

18 March 2013  

                                                                               
(1) S.I. 1992/548. Paragraph (2) has been amended by S.I. 

1994/543; S.I. 1995/619; S.I. 1996/636 and S.I. 1997/656. 
(2) Paragraph (k) was inserted by S.I. 1996/636. 
(3) 2012 c.5. 
(4) S.I. 2013/376. 

Tudalen 5



The Council Tax (Discount Disregards) (Amendment) (Wales) Order 2013 
 

Explanatory Memorandum 
 
 
This Explanatory Memorandum has been prepared by the Department for 
Local Government and Communities and is laid before the National Assembly 
for Wales in conjunction with the above subordinate legislation and in 
accordance with Standing Order 27.1.  
 
Minister’s Declaration  
 
In my view, this Explanatory Memorandum gives a fair and reasonable view of 
the expected impact of the above listed Regulations. I am satisfied the 
benefits outweigh any costs.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Lesley Griffiths 
Minister for Local Government and Government Business 

 

18 March 2013 

 
 

Tudalen 6



1. Description 
 
These regulations amend the Council Tax (Discount Disregards) Order 1992 
to include the Daily Living Component of Personal Independence Payment 
Enhanced and Standard levels in the list of benefits that a severely mentally 
impaired person must be in receipt of in order for the discount disregards to 
be applied to the Council Tax bill of the liable person. 
 
The second amendment concerns those persons whose award of Universal 
Credit includes an amount in respect of the fact that the person has limited 
capability for work or limited capability for work and work related activity. 
 
2. Matters of special interest to the Constitutional Affairs Committee 
 
None 
 
3. Legislative Background 
 
The powers to make the necessary amendments to the Council Tax 
(Additional Provisions for Discount Disregards) Regulations 1992 are 
contained within paragraphs 2 and 11 of Schedule 1 to, the Local Government 
Finance Act 1992 
 
The Regulations follow the negative resolution procedure. 
 
4. Purpose and intended effect of the legislation 
 
This Order will ensure that the amount of Council Tax payable will be reduced 
where a person is classed as severely mentally impaired and is in receipt of 
the Daily Living Component of Personal Independence Payments (Enhanced 
and Standard levels).  Personal Independence Payments will replace 
Disability Living Allowances for persons aged 16 to 64 as from the 8 April.  
The revised scheme will be rolled out in a limited area of England and 
implemented on a UK basis from June.  As receipt of the Disability Living 
Allowance is one of the qualifying criteria at the moment for a reduction in 
Council Tax this amendment ensures that this support continues. 
 
The second amendment also reflects changes to the welfare system and 
ensures that Council Tax liability will be reduced where a person has limited 
capacity for work or limited capability for work or work related activity. For 
these conditions to apply then an amount will be payable to an individual as 
part of their Universal Credit.    
   
5. Consultation  
 
No consultation has been undertaken in respect of this statutory instrument. 
 
6. Regulatory Impact Assessment (RIA) 
 

Tudalen 7



No RIA has been prepared for this statutory instrument as it is considered that 
the instrument only facilitates technical and routine amendments.  It has no 
major policy impact. 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 8



DRAFT SI REPORT 

Constitutional and Legislative Affairs Committee 
 
(CLAC(4)-…-12) 
 
CLAC… 
 
Constitutional and Legislative  Affairs Committee Draft Report 
 
Title:  … The Education (Student Loans) (Repayment) (Amendment) 
Regulations 2013 
 
Procedure:    Negative 
 

These Regulations amend the Education (Student Loans) (Repayment) 
Regulations 2009 (S.I. 2009/470) (“the Principal Regulations”). The 
Principal Regulations govern the repayment of income-contingent 
student loans paid to students under section 22 of the Teaching and 
Higher Education Act 1998(c.30). The Regulations make a number of 
detailed technical amendments as explained in the Explanatory 
Memorandum and in the Explanatory Note to the Regulations. 
 
Technical Scrutiny 
 
The following points are identified for reporting under Standing Order 
21.2 in respect of this instrument: 
 
1. Being composite regulations subject to a parliamentary 
procedure at Westminster, these Regulations have been made in 
English only. 
 
[Standing Order 21.2(ix) – that the instrument is not made in both 
English and Welsh.] 
 

Merits Scrutiny 
 
The following points are identified for reporting under Standing Order 
21.3 in respect of this instrument. 
 
1. Most composite instruments are made by the Secretary of State 
in relation to England and the Welsh Ministers in relation to Wales.  In 
this case the enabling powers are not as clear cut.  The powers in 
section 22 of the Teaching and Higher Education Act 1998 were only 
partially transferred to the National Assembly by section 44 of the 
Higher Education Act 2004.  Many were retained by the Secretary of 
State as the relate to the application of the tax system to the 
repayment of loans. 
 
Therefore, whilst some of the provisions of these Regulations are made 
by the Secretary of State in relation to England and the Welsh Ministers 

Eitem 3.2

Tudalen 9



DRAFT SI REPORT 

in relation to Wales in the usual way, many are made by the Secretary 
of State that extend to the whole of the UK as they relate also to those 
who studied in England or Wales, but are now employed (and taxed) in 
Scotland or Northern Ireland. 
 
[Standing Order 21.3(ii) – that it is of political or legal importance or 
gives rise to issues of public policy likely to be of interest to the 
Assembly.] 
 
Legal Advisers 
Constitutional and Legislative Affairs Committee 
 
April 2013 

Tudalen 10



S T A T U T O R Y  I N S T R U M E N T S  

2013 No. 607 

EDUCATION 

The Education (Student Loans) (Repayment) (Amendment) 

Regulations 2013 

Made - - - - 13th March 2013 

Laid before Parliament 14th March 2013 

Laid before the National Assembly for Wales 14
th
 March 2013 

Coming into force - - 6th April 2013 

The Secretary of State for Business, Innovation and Skills makes the following Regulations in 

exercise of the powers conferred by sections 22 and 42 of the Teaching and Higher Education Act 

1998(a). 

The Welsh Ministers make the following Regulations in exercise of the powers conferred on the 

Secretary of State by sections 22 and 42 of the Teaching and Higher Education Act 1998, now 

exercisable by them(b). 

Citation, commencement and extent 

1.—(1) These Regulations may be cited as the Education (Student Loans) (Repayment) 

(Amendment) Regulations 2013 and come into force on 6 April 2013. 

(2) Subject to paragraph (3), these Regulations extend to England and Wales only. 

(3) Regulations 8 to 18 extend to all of the United Kingdom in so far as they impose any 
obligation or confer any power on Her Majesty’s Revenue and Customs, an employer or a 

borrower in relation to repayments under Part 3 or 4 of the Education (Student Loans) 

(Repayment) Regulations 2009(c). 

Amendment of the Education (Student Loans) (Repayment) Regulations 2009 

2. The Education (Student Loans) (Repayment) Regulations 2009 are amended in accordance 

with regulations 3 to 18. 

                                                                                                                                            
(a) 1998 c.30; section 22 was amended by the Learning and Skills Act 2000 (c.21) section 146, the Income Tax (Earnings and 

Pensions) Act 2003 (c.1) Schedule 6, the Finance Act 2003 (c.14) section 147, the Higher Education Act 2004 (c.8) sections 
42, 43 and Schedule 7, the Apprenticeships, Skills, Children and Learning Act 2009 (c.22) section 257 and the Education 
Act 2011 (c.21) section 76. 

(b) The functions of the Secretary of State under section 22 of the Teaching and Higher Education Act 1998 as regards Wales 
were transferred to the National Assembly for Wales by section 44 of the Higher Education Act 2004, except for those 
functions under section 22(2)(a), (c), (j) and (k), 3(e) and (f) and (5). Functions under subsections (2)(a), (c) and (k) were 
exercisable by the Secretary of State concurrently with the National Assembly for Wales. The section 22 functions which 
were transferred to, or became exercisable by, the National Assembly for Wales were subsequently transferred to the Welsh 
Ministers by the Government of Wales Act 2006 (c.32) section 162 and paragraph 30 of Schedule 11. 

(c) S.I. 2009/470, amended by S.I. 2010/661, 2010/1010, 2011/784, 2012/836 and 2012/1309. 

Tudalen 11



 2

3. In regulation 3— 

(a) in paragraph (1)— 

(i) after the definition of “academic year” insert— 

““Access to HE Diploma” means a qualification which is specifically designed to 

prepare persons for study at university;”; and 

(ii) after the definition of “borrower” insert— 

““designated course” means a course designated by or under the 2011 Support 

Regulations; 

“eligible borrower” means an eligible student under regulation 4 of the 2011 Support 

Regulations;”; and 

(b) in paragraph (2), for “2011 Support Regulations or the 2011 Welsh Regulations” 

substitute “2011 Support Regulations, the 2011 Welsh Regulations or the Further 

Education Loans Regulations 2012(a)”. 

4. In regulation 13, for paragraph (2) substitute— 

“(2) Schedule 38 to the Finance Act 2012 (Tax Agents: Dishonest Conduct) applies for 

the purpose of repayments under Part 3 or 4 as it applies for the purposes of income tax.” 

5. In regulation 19— 

(a) in paragraph (3)(d), delete “or”; and 

(b) in paragraph (3)(e), for “.” substitute— 

“; or 

(f) in the case of post-2012 student loans for Access to HE Diplomas where a 

borrower has achieved at least one Access to HE Diploma and the Authority is 

satisfied that the borrower, who was an eligible borrower, completes a designated 

course.” 

6. In regulation 20— 

(a) in paragraph (4), before “Where the Authority” insert “Subject to paragraphs (6), (6A) 

and (9)”; 

(b) in paragraph (6), after “the Authority must” insert “subject to paragraph (6A)”; 

(c) after paragraph (6), insert— 

“(6A) Where an amount of £5 or less was not required to repay the student loan which is 

not a post-2012 student loan and which was a repayment above the repayment threshold for 

the student loan which is not a post-2012 student loan and not above the repayment 

threshold for a post-2012 student loan, this amount shall be treated as a direct payment to 

the Authority under regulation 15(1) for the post-2012 student loan and the Authority is not 

required to give a notice to the borrower.”; and 

(d) after paragraph (8), insert— 

“(9) On or after 6 April 2016, where a borrower has any liability to repay only a post-

2012 student loan and has— 

(a) failed to declare whether or not any liability solely relates to a post-2012 student 

loan under regulation 43(2); or 

(b) failed to inform their employer whether or not any liability solely relates to a post-

2012 student loan under regulation 43A, 

any repayment above the repayment threshold for a student loan which is not a post-2012 

student loan and not above the repayment threshold for a post-2012 student loan, shall be 

treated as a direct payment to the Authority under regulation 15(1).” 

                                                                                                                                            
(a) S.I. 2012/1818. 

Tudalen 12



 3

7. In regulation 21A— 

(a) in paragraph (2)— 

(i) after “Subject to paragraphs” insert “(2A), (2B), (2C),”; and 

(ii) in sub-paragraph (d), for “.” substitute— 

“; 

(e) for any period where sub-paragraphs (a), (b), (c) and (d) do not apply to a 

borrower, the standard interest rate;”; and 

(b) after paragraph (2), insert— 

“(2A) Subject to paragraphs (2B) and (2C), during any academic year or part of any 

academic year, where a borrower makes repayments in accordance with regulation 18 or 

repays all of the outstanding balance of the student loan under regulation 15(1), post-2012 

student loans bear interest at the rate which will result in an annual percentage rate of 

charge determined in accordance with the Consumer Credit (Total Charge for Credit) 

Regulations 2010(a) equal to— 

(a) for a borrower to whom Part 3 or 4 applies and also applied for the whole or part 

of the previous tax year — 

 (i) where the interest income the borrower received in the previous tax year is the 

lower interest threshold or less, the standard interest rate; 

 (ii) where the interest income the borrower received in the previous tax year is 

more than the lower interest threshold but not more than the higher interest 

threshold, the standard interest rate plus the additional interest rate; 

 (iii) where the interest income the borrower received in the previous tax year is 

more than the higher interest threshold, the standard interest rate plus 3%; 

(b) for a borrower to whom Part 5 applies, where the Authority has determined under 

regulation 75(1) that the borrower may repay a loan by income-related instalments 

and the Authority considers that the interest income the borrower is likely to 

receive in the next 12 month period is— 

 (i) the lower interest threshold or less, the standard interest rate; 

 (ii) more than the lower interest threshold but not more than the higher interest 

threshold, the standard interest rate plus the additional interest rate; 

 (iii) more than the higher interest threshold, the standard interest rate plus 3%; 

(c) for a borrower to whom Part 5 applies, in any period during which a borrower is 

required to pay to the Authority a fixed instalment in accordance with a notice 

served under regulation 73, the standard interest rate plus 3%; 

(d) where sub-paragraphs (a), (b) and (c) do not apply to a borrower, the standard 

interest rate. 

(2B) The interest income applied in paragraph (2A) will be from the tax year in which— 

(a) repayments are made under regulation 18 where— 

 (i) a borrower makes repayments under regulation 18 during a tax year; 

 (ii) the borrower requests, after the end of the tax year in sub-paragraph (i), that 

their interest rate is recalculated; and 

 (iii) the borrower’s interest income in that tax year is less than the interest income 

the borrower received in the previous tax year; 

(b) a borrower repays all of the outstanding balance of the student loan under 

regulation 15(1) where— 

                                                                                                                                            
(a) S.I. 2010/1011. 

Tudalen 13



 4

 (i) the borrower requests that their interest rate is recalculated after the end of the 

tax year; and 

 (ii) the borrower’s interest income in that tax year is less than the interest income 

the borrower received in the previous tax year. 

(2C) Where a borrower repays all of the outstanding balance of the student loan under 

regulation 15(1) in the tax year specified by regulation 15(2), the post-2012 student loans 

bear interest at the rate which will result in an annual percentage rate of charge determined 

in accordance with the Consumer Credit (Total Charge for Credit) Regulations 2010 equal 

to the standard interest rate.” 

8. In regulation 29— 

(a) in paragraph (7) for “paragraph (8)” substitute “paragraphs (8) and (9)”; and 

(b) after paragraph (8) insert— 

“(9) The repayment threshold where a borrower has a post-2012 student loan and a 

student loan which is not a post-2012 student loan is that set out in paragraph (7)(a), (b) or 

(c) (as the case may be).” 

9. In regulation 33, for paragraph (1), substitute— 

“(1) Sections 20BA (orders for the delivery of documents) and 20BB (falsification etc of 

documents) of the 1970 Act, Schedule 23 to the Finance Act 2011(a) and Schedule 38 to 

the Finance Act 2012(b) apply for the purposes of establishing the amount of the repayment 

a borrower may be required to make under this Part as they apply for the purposes of 

establishing the amount in respect of which a person is chargeable to income tax.” 

10. Omit regulation 41A(1)(c) (but not the “and” after it). 

11. In regulation 43(2) after “that Form P46” insert “and in particular on or after 6 April 2016 

the borrower must declare whether or not any liability solely relates to a post-2012 student 

loan”. 

12. In regulation 43A after “student loan” insert “and in particular on or after 6 April 2016 the 

borrower must inform their employer whether or not any liability solely relates to a post-2012 

student loan”. 

13. In regulation 44— 

(a) in paragraph (2)(a) after “repayment threshold” insert “or default threshold”; 

(b) in paragraph (2)(b) after “repayment threshold” insert “or default threshold”; and 

(c) after paragraph (5) insert— 

“(6) The default threshold is applicable until a date specified by HMRC in a notice given 

under regulation 49(1) to the employer where a borrower has only liability to repay a post-

2012 student loan and has— 

(a) failed to declare whether or not liability solely relates to a post-2012 student loan 

under regulation 43(2); or 

(b) failed to inform their employer whether or not liability solely relates to a post-2012 

student loan under regulation 43A. 

(7) The default threshold is the repayment threshold for a student loan which is not a 

post-2012 student loan as set out in regulation 29(7)(b) or (c) (as the case may be).” 

14. In regulation 59B, omit paragraphs (6) and (7). 

15. After regulation 59B, insert— 

                                                                                                                                            
(a) 2011 c.11. 
(b) 2012 c.14. 

Tudalen 14



 5

“Employees paid in specified circumstances 

59BA.—(1) This regulation applies if an employer makes a payment to an employee and 

all of the circumstances in paragraph (2) apply. 

(2) The circumstances are that— 

(a) the payment includes an amount which is a relevant payment for work undertaken 

by the employee on— 

 (i) the day the payment is made, or 

 (ii) provided that the payment is made before the employee leaves the place of 

work at the end of the employee’s period of work, the day before the payment 

is made, 

(b) in respect of the work mentioned in sub-paragraph (a), it was not reasonably 

practicable for the employer to calculate the payment due before the completion of 

the work, and 

(c) it is not reasonably practicable for the employer to deliver the information required 

by regulation 59B(1) on making the payment. 

(3) The employer need not deliver the information required by regulation 59B(1) on or 

before making the payment. 

(4) The employer must deliver that information no later than the end of the period of 7 

days starting with the day following the day on which the payment is made. 

(5) Where this regulation applies, the information required under regulation 59B(1) in 

respect of the relevant payment may be included in a return with the information for any 

other relevant payment. 

Benefits and expenses – returns under regulations 85 to 87 of the PAYE Regulations 

59BB.—(1) This paragraph applies if an employer makes a payment of general earnings 

to an employee which, for the purposes of tax falls to be included in a return under— 

(a) regulations 85 and 86 of the PAYE Regulations (employers: annual return of other 

earnings (Forms P11D and P9D) – information which must be provided for each 

employee)(a), or 

(b) regulations 85 and 87 of the PAYE Regulations (employers: annual return of other 

earnings (Forms P11D and P9D) – information which must also be provided for 

benefits code employees) or would do if the employee’s employment was subject 

to the benefits code for the purposes of regulation 85 of the PAYE Regulations. 

(2) If the employer is unable to comply with the requirement in regulation 59B(1) to 

deliver the information required by that regulation on or before making the payment, the 

employer must instead deliver the information as soon as reasonably practicable after the 

payment is made and in any event no later than 14 days after the end of the income tax 

month the payment is made in.” 

16. In regulation 59E— 

(a) in paragraph (1)— 

(i) omit the “or” after sub-paragraph (c), and 

(ii) in paragraph (d), for “.” substitute— 

“, or 

(e) an employer to whom a direction has been given under regulation 67D (11) of the 

the PAYE Regulations.”; 

                                                                                                                                            
(a) Regulation 41 of the Education (Student Loans) (Repayment) Regulations 2009, S.I. 2009/470, defines the PAYE 

Regulations as the Income Tax (Pay As You Earn) Regulations 2003, S.I.  2003/2682. 

Tudalen 15



 6

(b) after paragraph (2), insert— 

“(2A) Before 6 April 2014, a Real Time Information employer to whom this regulation 

applies may proceed as if the employer were a non-Real Time Information employer and 

the provisions of these Regulations apply accordingly to such employer.”; 

(c) in paragraph (3), substitute “On and after 6 April 2014, the” for “An”; and 

(d) omit paragraphs (7) and (8). 

17. In regulation 59F— 

(a) in paragraph (1), substitute “59E” for “59F”;  

(b) omit paragraph (6)(a)(ii); and 

(c) in paragraph (6)(c), substitute “approved” for “appropriate”.   

18. After regulation 59F, insert— 

“Failure to make a return under regulation 59B or 59E 

59G.—(1) This regulation applies where an employer does not make a return as required 

by regulation 59B (Real time returns of information about payments of earnings) or 59E 

(Exceptions to regulation 59B). 

(2) The employer must provide the information in the next return made under regulation 

59B or 59E for the tax year in question. 

(3) If the information has not been provided before 20 April following the end of the tax 

year in question, the employer must make a return under this paragraph before 20 May 

following the tax year in question. 

(4) A return under paragraph (3)— 

(a) must include the information specified in Schedule 2;  

(b) must be made as soon as reasonably practicable after discovery of the failure to 

make the return, and 

(c) must be made by an approved method of electronic communications. 

(5) Section 98A of the 1970 Act (special penalties in case of certain returns) applies to 

returns under paragraph (3).” 

 
 David Willetts 

 Minister of State for Universities and Science 

13th March 2013 Department for Business, Innovation and Skills 

 
 
 
 Leighton Andrews 

 Minister for Education and Skills 

11th March 2013 One of the Welsh Ministers 

 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 16



 7

 
EXPLANATORY NOTE 

(This note is not part of the Regulations) 

These Regulations amend the Education (Student Loans) (Repayment) Regulations 2009 (S.I. 

2009/470) (“the Principal Regulations”). The Principal Regulations govern the repayment of 

income-contingent student loans paid to students under section 22 of the Teaching and Higher 

Education Act 1998(c.30). 

Regulations 3 to 18 amend the Principal Regulations. 

Regulation 3 adds loans made under the Further Education Loans Regulations 2012 (S.I. 

2012/1818) to the definition of post-2012 student loans in the Principal Regulations. Regulations 3 

and 5 provide for the cancellation of a borrower’s liability in relation to loans for Access to HE 

Diplomas. 

Regulations 4 and 9 substitute new penalties, for dishonest conduct of tax agents, for those in the 

Principal Regulations. 

Regulation 6 provides for the transfer of small credit balances between two types of loan. 

Regulation 7 sets out a default interest rate where other provisions of regulation 21A(2) do not 

apply and provides interest rates for borrowers where they wish to settle their account in full or 

repay the remaining balance by direct debit at the end of their loan term. 

Regulation 8 sets out the repayment threshold for a borrower who has two types of loan. 

Regulation 10 amends the definition of Real Time Information employers to exclude certain 

employers from becoming Real Time Information employers from 6 April 2013. 

Regulations 11 and 12 impose requirements on borrowers to specify which type of loan they 

have on or after 6 April 2016 and regulation 13 imposes a default repayment threshold where 

borrowers fail to meet the requirements. 

Regulations 14 and 18 amend how penalties are imposed where there is a failure to make returns 

under regulations 59B or 59E of the Principal Regulations. 

Regulation 15 inserts new regulations 59BA and 59BB into the Principal Regulations. New 

regulations 59BA and 59BB make provision for exceptions from the requirement in regulation 

59B to deliver information on or before the making of a payment. 

Regulation 16 amends regulation 59E to extend the time limit and the categories of employers 

who are not required to deliver information to Her Majesty’s Revenue and Customs regarding a 

payment on or before making the payment to employees. The employers specified in regulation 

59E(1), which includes those employers whom Her Majesty’s Revenue and Customs has directed 

are unable to file using an approved method of electronic communications, are for the tax year 

2013-14 entitled to file in accordance with the provisions in the Principal Regulations which do 

not relate to Real Time Information employers. 

Regulation 17 removes the requirement to specify the tax year to which the return relates, as it is 

unnecessary, and it corrects typographical errors. 

A Tax Information and Impact Note covering regulations 10 and 14 to 18 of this Instrument was 

published on 15th March 2012 alongside the Income Tax (Pay As You Earn) (Amendment) 

Regulations 2012 (S.I. 2012/822). This has been updated as a result of changes to the impacts as a 

result of the year long Real Time Information pilot and is available on the Her Majesty’s Revenue 

and Customs’ website at http://www.hmrc.gov.uk/thelibrary/tiins.htm. An impact assessment has 

not been produced for the regulations which are not covered by the Tax Information and Impact 

Note because they have no impact on businesses or civil society organisations. The Explanatory 

Memorandum is published alongside the instrument on www.legislation.gov.uk. 

Tudalen 17



 

 1

Explanatory Memorandum to The Education (Student Loans) (Repayment) 
(Amendment) Regulations 2013 
 
This Explanatory Memorandum has been prepared by the Higher Education 
Division of the Department for Education and Skills and is laid before the 
National Assembly for Wales in conjunction with the above subordinate 
legislation and in accordance with Standing Order 27.1. 
 
 
Minister’s Declaration 
 
In my view, this Explanatory Memorandum gives a fair and reasonable view of 
the expected impact of the Education (Student Loans) (Repayment) 
(Amendment) Regulations 2013. I am satisfied that the benefits outweigh any 
costs. 
 
 
 
 
 
Leighton Andrews – Minister for Education and Skills 
11 March 2013 
 

Tudalen 18



 

 2

1. Description 

The Regulations further amend the Education (Student Loans) (Repayment) 
Regulations 2009 (SI 2009/470).  The amendments introduce a number of 
technical changes to the repayment system such as the determination of 
interest income, handling of credit balances and annual HMRC tax changes.  

2. Matters of special interest to the Constitutional and Legislative Affairs 
Committee 

 
These Regulations amend the Education (Student Loans) (Repayment) 
Regulations 2009 (SI 2009/470) (“the 2009 Regulations”). The 2009 
Regulations were made as composite regulations by the Welsh Ministers (in 
relation to Wales) and the Secretary of State and they govern repayments of 
student loans by borrowers who have taken out income-contingent loans for 
courses which began on or after September 1998. Although most of the 
provisions made by the Secretary of State only apply in relation to England, the 
2009 Regulations contain provisions (not devolved to the Welsh Ministers) 
which are made by the Secretary of State in relation to England and Wales 
which concern the tax system, to the extent that student loans can be collected 
through the taxation system operated by Her Majesty’s Revenue and Customs 
(“HMRC”). 
 
This composite statutory instrument is subject to the negative resolution 
procedure in the National Assembly for Wales and in both Houses of the UK 
Parliament. Given the composite nature of the 2009 Regulations and no routine 
parliamentary processes in place to lay bi-lingual regulation before Parliament, 
these regulations will be made in English only. 

3. Legislative background 

 
The relevant legal powers to make these regulations are set out in sections 22 
and 42 of the Teaching and Higher Education Act 1998. 
 
The functions of the Secretary of State under Section 22 of the Teaching and 
Higher Education Act 1998 as regards Wales were transferred to the National 
Assembly for Wales by section 44 of the Higher Education Act 2004, except for 
those functions section 22(2)(a), (c), (j) and (k), 3(e) and (f) and (5). Functions 
under sub-sections 22(2)(a), (c) and (k) were exercisable concurrently with the 
National Assembly. The functions in sections 22(2)(j), 22(3)(e) and (f) and 
section 22(5) remain Secretary of State functions. The functions so transferred 
were subsequently transferred to the Welsh Ministers by section 162 of, and 
paragraph 30 of Schedule 11 to the Government of Wales Act 2006. 
 
This instrument will follow the Negative Resolution procedure.  

4. Purpose & intended effect of the legislation 

   
The amendments to the regulations are technical in nature and relate to the 
statutory functions exercisable in respect of Wales in part by the Welsh 

Tudalen 19



 

 3

Ministers and in part by the Secretary of State.  A summary of the changes is 
as follows: 
 

Variable Interest Rates at the end of the loan term:  The income contingent 
interest rate, where borrowers wish to settle their account in full or repay the 
remaining balance by direct debit at the end of their loan term, will be the rate 
which was applicable during the previous tax year. The Student Loans 
Company (SLC) will, if requested by the borrower, re-calculate the interest rate 
after the end of the tax year when actual income details for the year in question 
is known.  

 

Borrowers moving overseas – interest rate: During the tax year in which a 
borrower moves overseas, for the part of the tax year spent in the UK, the 
actual income for the period spent in the UK will determine the applicable 
interest rate.  For the period of the overseas repayment schedule, the predicted 
income will determine the rate of interest.  However, that schedule may take 2-
3 months to set up.  These regulations allow that SLC will apply a rate of RPI 
for this period of time.   

 

Small credit balances: Where a borrower has both pre- and post-2012 loans 
and the pre-2012 loan is over-repaid, the SLC will contact the borrower to offer 
a refund, and where no contact is received within 60 days the credit balance 
will be credited to the post-2012 loan balance.  The amending regulations 
permit SLC to automatically credit the outstanding post-2012 loan balance 
without asking the borrower’s permission if the over-repaid credit is £5 or less. 

 

Threshold on change of jobs after 2016: When a borrower changes jobs 
after April 2016, he or she will be required to supply evidence to their employer 
of their correct threshold.  Where this is not supplied, employers will apply the 
lower threshold as a default, until such time HMRC advises the employer that 
the higher threshold applies.  The amending regulations allow that where this 
results in an over-repayment because the borrower has not supplied the correct 
evidence to their employer, that this is not immediately refunded to the 
borrower, but instead it serves to reduce the loan balance. These provisions 
are made by the Secretary of State in respect of both England and Wales.  

 

HMRC amendments:  There are further amendments which reflect HMRC’s 
requirements which must be mirrored in our regulations because loan 
repayments are collected via the tax system.  They will enable penalties to be 
charged to employers who make errors or fail to file returns under Real Time 
Information (RTI).  There is a new penalty regime for dishonest tax agents and 
modification to the reporting arrangements for certain benefits and expenses. 
These provisions are made by the Secretary of State in respect of both England 
and Wales.  
 
RTI aims to reduce administrative burdens for all employers, including small 
employers (upon whom the current burden of PAYE currently falls 
disproportionately).  The aim is to achieve this by integrating employee 

Tudalen 20



 

 4

payment and reporting to HMRC into a single payroll process.  The Regulations 
keep student loan collection processes in line with the rest of the PAYE system.  
The changes concern how repayments are reported to HMRC, with no changes 
to how student loan repayments are collected.   

5. Consultation  

 
No formal consultation was undertaken as a result of these technical changes,  
as all relevant stakeholders were consulted on the changes to the higher 
education and student finance system for 2012/13 during the consultation 
exercise completed in February 2011. 
 
These included proposals for the reform of the student loans repayments; the 
increase of repayment thresholds from £15,000 to £21,000; and the 
introduction of a variable progressive rate of interest charged depending on 
income.  Technical consultation papers on the following issues were published 
on the Welsh Government’s consultation web page: 
 

• the implementation of the proposed new system of higher education 
funding and student finance; and 

 

• the proposed system for part time higher education funding – including 
student finance for 2012/13. 

 
The taxation changes will be publicised by HRMC. The effect of the 
Regulations were explained to the HMRC Student Loans Consultation Group, 
which HRMC uses to consult employers, representative bodies and payroll 
software providers on matters related to the collection of student loan 
repayments.  Extensive guidance on RTI is published on HMRC’s website. 
 
6. Regulatory Impact Assessment (RIA)  
 
Please Note:  
 
Under the Equality Act 2010, the Department, as a public authority, is legally 
obliged to give due regard to equality issues when making policy decisions.  
We have considered each of our regulations by reference to our Public Sector 
Equality Duty.  Vulnerable borrowers (those with protected characteristics) will 
not generally be disadvantaged by these policies.  There is a potential issue in 
relation to the availability of interest- bearing loans for Muslim students. We will 
continue to monitor the effect of the Regulations on Muslim students, both in 
terms of their acceptance of university placements and student loans. We are 
aware also that officials in the Dept for Innovation and Skills are considering 
this issue further and we will work closely with colleagues in England and 
elsewhere if the need for any change is identified. 
 
The impact on business, charities or voluntary bodies is nil for policy changes. 
 
All employers, including charities or voluntary bodies will be required to use 
RTI. 

Tudalen 21



 

 5

 
The impact of RTI on the public sector is the same as for any other employer. 
 
 

Tudalen 22



 

 6

 

Tudalen 23



Eitem 4.1

Tudalen 24

Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) vi o Reol Sefydlog 17.42

Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon


	Agenda
	3.1 CLA245 - Gorchymyn y Dreth Gyngor (Diystyriadau Disgownt) (Diwygio) (Cymru) 2013
	CLA(4)-11-13-Papur 2
	CLA(4)-11-13-Papur 3(Saesneg yn Unig)

	3.2 CLA240 - Rheoliadau Addysg (Benthyciadau Myfyrwyr) (Ad-daliad) (Diwygio) 2013 (Saesneg yn unig)
	CLA(4)-11-13-Papur 5( Saesneg yn Unig)
	CLA(4)-11-13-Papur 6 (Saesneg yn Unig)

	4.1 Trafod Adroddiad Terfynol yr Ymchwiliad Byr i Reoliadau Cynlluniau Gostyngiadau™r Dreth Gyngor

